MINUTES
CITY OF LONSDALE
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 9, 2025

. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Berg called a special meeting of the Lonsdale City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. in
the City Council Chambers, 415 Central Street West.

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Everyone stood and recited the pledge of allegiance.

. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Kari Miller, Tom Berg, James Vosejpka and Scott Pelava
Members Absent: Brian Wermerskirchen

City Staff Present:  City Administrator Joel Erickson, Public Works Director Joe
Dornfeld and Chief of Police Jason Schmitz

. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Berg asked if there were any additions, deletions or corrections to the agenda. A
motion was made by Pelava and seconded by Miller to approve the agenda as presented.
Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka and Pelava. Vote against: Non. Abstained: None. Vote:
4-0. Motion carried.

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

None

. PUBLIC HEARINGS

None

. PRESENTATION OF CITIZEN PETITIONS AND COMMENTS

None

. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA

None

. OLD BUSINESS

a. Discuss the City’s Preliminary 2026 Budget and Property Tax Levy
Erickson said this is the sixth meeting on the City’s 2026 budget and property tax levy.
He said items to be discussed were: the property tax levy, the entire 2026 budget and any
other priorities of the City Council. Erickson said the property tax levy is based on
discussion at past meetings and the tax rate is proposed to be the same as 2025. The
consensus of the City Council was that the property tax levy is acceptable. He reviewed
expenses associated with the City Council and Human Resources. Erickson said by




switching to Blue Cross for health insurance, the estimated premium is less than 2025
due to less dependents and hiring younger employees than left the City. He reviewed
expenses associated with Administration and touched on professional services, the 2026
audit and dues/subscriptions. Planning and Zoning expenses were reviewed and it was
noted that building permit inspections are expected to be less in 2026. The Police
Department was reviewed and Erickson summarized the potential federal funding for
body cameras and promoting from within an Officer to the position of Sargeant. Chief
Schmitz reviewed the quote received from Glock for department issued handguns.
Mayor Berg asked about purchasing holsters. Schmitz said he would look into that.
Miller said she likes the idea of the City purchasing hand guns for the officers. Chief
Schmitz reviewed the quote for furniture in the Sargeant’s office and the receptionist
area. He said the options are to buy for both offices or just for the Sargeant’s office.
Pelava asked if the furniture would match the existing. Chief Schmitz said it was the
same furniture. Miller asked if it is needed. Mayor Berg said it is needed for when the
body camera system is implemented for data requests. Schmitz said yes but Al will help
reduce the amount time it takes to redact private data. Mayor Berg asked about fencing
around the Police facility with Kwik Trip coming and the potential of vehicles using the
PD to turn around. Erickson said the fencing proposed with the facility was mid building
on the east side and around the north parking lot. He said any expansion of the building
will be to the west. Chief Schmitz agreed and said there is no need for additional garage
space. Mayor Berg said the access gate should be pursued before the perimeter fence and
a quote should be obtained.

Erickson reviewed the recycling rebate and said based on the first month, it is estimated
the City will receive around $8,000. He said with the recycling bins no longer at
Mackenthun’s, that might increase. Erickson reviewed the proposed EDA budget and
said the EDA is recommending they pay for $3,000.00 of the marketing budget and other
departments pay for their own marketing. Mayor Berg said the EDA should discuss
marketing and come up with a long term plan. Erickson recommended that if that is the
case, a RFP for marketing services should be drafted and sent to potential companies. He
reviewed the Revolving Loan Fund and SCDP Grant program budgets. Erickson
reviewed the Library budget and summarized professional services, dues/subscriptions
and office furnishings. He reviewed the debt service funds and said for the City Hall and
PD payments, he was recommending using a portion of each respective funds reserves to
lessen the reliance on the property tax levy for the next several years. Mayor Berg asked
if more of the City Hall fund balance could be used. Erickson replied yes.

Erickson reviewed the Park’s Department revenues, specifically the T Mobile tower lease
payment and the fact that 2026 is the last year of the payment. Public Work Director
Dornfeld reviewed expenses and discussed the compost site and tree removal. He said
2026 is the last year of the agreement for porto-potties. Miller said she provided Hinz-
Ibarra grant opportunities to consider. Dornfeld said he is working with Bolton & Menk
on a T Mobile grant. There was discussion on improvements/repairs to the Veteran’s
Memorial and it was stated that donations are needed to make the project feasible.
Dornfeld said he spoke to Common Grounds and the intent is to add a cornerstone cap to
help hold the block together better. Staff and the City Council also reviewed the proposed




budgets for the water/sewer and liquor enterprise funds. Dornfeld reviewed the proposed
street maintenance for 2026.

Erickson said as of the meeting, the budget is projected to run a deficit. He said options
to reduce or eliminate the deficit include using more reserves from debt service funds,
less mosquito control, use PD forfeiture funds for the furniture, less capital outlay
spending in all departments, less street maintenance and/or use a portion of sewer
department fund balance. Mayor Berg asked what 1% of the levy is. Erickson replied
about $32,000.00. Mayor Berg said the focus should be on attracting businesses to
Lonsdale and that the Council and staff should work as a team to make the budget work.
Erickson said staff can get the deficit to $0. Miller said that would be good. Vosejpka
asked about assessing residents for mill and overlay projects. Pelava reviewed the history
and why residents have not been assessed for mill and overlay projects. There was
general discussion on assessing for mill and overlay projects.

10. NEW BUSINESS
a. Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-38, a Resolution Approving a Purchase

Agreement for the Property Located at 415 Central St. W.
Erickson said the potential buyer of the old City Hall countered the City’s counteroffer.
Erickson said based on the buyer’s counteroffer, they are proposing to pay $275,000.00,
provide $2,750 in earnest money, get access to the property for inspections, obtain
traditional financing, pay 50% of the closing costs, record the deed and pay the premium
for the Owner’s Title Insurance policy. He said the City would be responsible for
obtaining an Owner’s Title Insurance policy, pay a broker fee of $7,425.00, close on or
before October 28, 2025, pay 50% of the closing costs, pay the cost to issue a Title
Insurance Policy and pay the cost of the conservation fee attributed to the deed. Erickson
said the buyer also wants the south property line extended to the edge of the parking lot.
He said that was ready in the works because he anticipated any buyer would want that.
Erickson said the City is selling the building as is/where is/with all faults and said the
north basement wall had been repaired and during that repair, it was brought to the City’s
attention, there was a water issue, which the City is in the process of making repairs to.
Erickson said by approving the proposed Resolution, the City Council is agreeing to sell
the property according to the proposed agreement and is authorizing the Mayor and/or
City Administrator to execute the deed and other closing documents as may be necessary.
A motion was made by Vosejpka and seconded by Miller to approve Resolution 2025-38.
Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote:
4-0. Motion caried.

11. OTHER BUSINESS
None




12. ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Miller and seconded by Vosejpka to adjourn the meeting at 8:13 pm.
Vote for: Wermerskirchen, Miller, Berg, Vosejpka and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained:
None. Vote: 5-0. Motion caried.

Respectfully Submitted:

A

Joel A{ Erickson, City Administrator




